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1)  The following answers are in response to questions and comments related to the draft RFP and the final RFP:

Q-96:
Cover Letter said NASA plan to issue Task Order for 2010 to 2012 while the DRFP contexts request to propose to 2015.  Does this mean that NASA will issue 1st Task Order for 2010 to 2012 and then will issue 2nd or follow-on Task Orders which will cover 2013 to 2015?

The draft RFP documented NASA's original intent to award task orders at  the time of basic award through 2012.  The final RFP letter documents NASA’s intent to award task orders to fulfill the annual resupply demand requirements for calendar year 2010 through 2015 concurrent with award of the basic contract(s).
Q-97:
What is the concrete definition of "ISS integration".  In case of pressurized cargo, ISS integration is any tasks between hatch opening and hatch closing after return or disposal cargos are loaded on a transfer vehicle?  In case of unpressurized cargo, ISS integration is any tasks between the start of berthing operation of exposed pallet and the start of Departure Phase.

The term "ISS integration" refers to the set of activities required to ensure SSP50808 requirements have been met; necessary hardware and software development to interface with the ISS has been completed; and joint on-orbit integrated operations plans have been finalized.
Q-98:
On ISS Commercial Resupply Services web page, Contact Award is scheduled on 28 November 2008.  Does this Contact Award mean IDIQ On-Ramp Contact Award?  If so, when NASA plans Contact Award for 1st Task Order?  This is related to the timing of start which is closely related to when we can supply services.

The RFP letter establishes NASA’s intent to award task orders to fulfill the annual resupply demand requirements for calendar year 2010 through 2015 concurrent with award of the basic contract(s).  These awards are scheduled to be made on or about 28 November 2008.  If subsequent “On-Ramp Contract Awards” are made, they will be made in accordance with clause II,.A.1 On-Ramp.

Q-99:
DRFP indicates maximum pressurized upmass of 12,000kg, unpressurized upmass of 3,500kg, return cargo downmass of 1,500kg and disposal cargo downmass of 5,000kg for each year.   It may be better for each offeror if NASA specifies maximum required mass for each year.

The maximum prices listed for the templates in the draft RFP were written to contain the extremes of demand so that unanticipated adjustments to launch dates would be captured in the pricing instructions.  These numbers are annual maximums.  Revisions have been made in the final RFP to clarify the pricing instructions.
Q-100:
Is the weight for price quotation net or gross weight (gross mean including packing factor)?

Depending on the type of upmass, the price quotation is net or gross weight.  The final RFP include definitions for customer cargo and usable cargo in Attachment V.I. of the RFP.
Q-101:
Annual capability must be related to the timing of ATP or Task Order.  How shall we indicate the timing of ATP or Task Order in price proposal or assume the timing in order to propose annual capability?
The offeror is requested to create prices to cover launch dates within the given calendar years based on the range of capacity being offered during that time frame. The pricing strategy necessary to cover an offeror’s fixed and variable costs and the timing of those expenses are left at the discretion of the offeror to determine.

Q-102:
Although offerors are required to propose price per Kg, actual price may be price up to a certain weight since cost structure of transportation vehicle consists of high fixed-charge ratio.  Can we propose price in this approach, for an example, "US$XXX up to XX ton for pressurized cargo and the same disposal weight."
The pricing templates are created to give the offeror flexibility to price their service reflecting their approach translated into a dollar per kilogram price per year.  Additional description and an illustration have been added to the final RFP in order to clarify the use of the templates.
Q-103:
In accordance with II.A.5, 5.4 Unique Instructions for Cargo Resupply Task Orders, offerors are required not to exceed the prices contained in the Schedule (we are not sure what "Schedule" means, but it is most likely price proposed under this RFP).  Does this mean that we have to quote Not-Exceed Price (NEP) in response to this RFP.  Taking into consideration of unknown factors, such as design change, as of today and Non Recurring Cost for 1st service, we may have to quote higher number.  Furthermore, NEP should be quoted based on single procurement (in other words, we cannot consider discount by consolidated procurement)  In summary, we believe we have to quote NRE price for any year based on 1st service price including NRC as well as single procurement.  Is this understanding is correct?

The RFP requires not-to-exceed prices to be included in section I.A.4.  These prices will also be reflected in Template P2 for evaluation.  The pricing strategy necessary to cover an offeror’s fixed and variable costs and the timing of those expenses are left at the discretion of the offeror to determine.
Q-104:
Table C-1 on Page 22 indicates Payment Milestone requirements.  While NASA requires less than 20% prior to completion of ISS integration, including demonstration of berthing, or equivalent and at least 25% at the Delivery, we are confused since the completion of ISS integration and Delivery may be almost same timing.  What should we interpret this requirements?
A demonstration is not part of the services procured under the ISS CRS contract.  However, before NASA will allow any vehicle to berth with the ISS, the contractor must show that the vehicle meets the ISS interface requirements.  No more than 30% of the standard mission price (update in final RFP) will be paid prior to demonstrating that the vehicle satisfies the ISS interface requirements.  The final payment of 20% (update in final RFP) is tied  to the actual success of the specific mission and will be paid upon mission completion.
Q-105:
Table C-8 on Page 33 indicates a sort of penalty in case of Mission Failure.  In cased of Mission Failure, NASA will not pay the final payment (at least 25%).  Does this mean that a contractor will not be obligated to return any progress payments already received (perhaps, 75%) even in the case of Failed Mission?
In the case of a failed mission, Clause II.A.19 will take precedence and only the final payment will be withheld.  The contractor will not be obligated to return prior progress payments.  The final payment has been updated to 20% in the final RFP.
Q-106:
Liability for Third Party Claims related to Hazardous Launch Activity and Re-entry Operation will be pursuant to FAA license/permits or Commercial Space Launch Act.  Is this understanding correct?

The 49 U.S.C. 70101 liability provision applies to liability for third party claims for launch and re-entry activities that are covered by that Act.  It does not cover liability for other activities under this contract.
Q-107:
While we understand the same Cross-Waiver for Liability as Intergovernmental Agreement shall be applied, how should we consider liability for NASA (or the Government), such as any damage to cargo or NASA property.  49 U.S.C. 70101 requires insurance $100M for the Government property.  Is this also applicable for whole of Resupply Services (until docking to ICC even after space vehicle is separated from LV)?

NASA is waiving claims against the contractor, and requiring the contractor to waive claims against NASA, for damage to either party's property during protected space operations as defined under the Cross-Waiver of Liability for Space Station Activities (NFS 1852.228-76).  NASA does not require additional insurance other than what is required by 49 U.S.C. 70101.
Q-108:
From Page 43, there is list of FAR clauses.  We think only "X" marked FAR clauses will be applicable for this contract and no-marked clauses will not be applicable.  Is this understanding correct?

Yes, in paragraph b of FAR 52.212-5, only those clauses marked with an “X” apply.
Q-109:
While there is the description "The Buy American Act is not applicable in this solicitation or contract" on the top of Page 47, IV.A.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS on Page 52 requests offerors to certificate whether or not they will comply with US Commercial Provider of Space Transportation Services.  Although this seems to declare "is" or "is not" as certification, the title seems to be the mandatory requirement.  How should we interpret this requirement?

Although the Buy American Act does not apply to the solicitation, other statutes as such the Commercial Space Act of 1998, codified at 42 U.S.C. 14731 et seq., apply to this solicitation.  Section 201 of the Commercial Space Act of 1998 states that “except as otherwise provided in this section, the Federal Government shall acquire space transportation services from United States commercial providers whenever such services are required in the course of its activities.”  Paragraph 1.1 in section IV.A.1 of the RFP is mandatory and requires the offeror to certify whether it is a “United States commercial provider” as defined by the Commercial Space Act of 1998.  Therefore, except as otherwise provided in the Commercial Space Act of 1998, statute prevents NASA from awarding a contract to any offeror that indicates it “is not” a U.S. commercial provider.

Q-110:
If US Commercial Provide of Space Transportation Services is not mandatory requirement, can NASA accept a foreign space vehicles launch by foreign countries with foreign Launch Vehicle.
It is mandatory for the contractor to be a U.S. provider, and the launch vehicle must be manufactured in the U.S;  therefore, except as otherwise provided in the Commercial Space Act of 1998, statute prevents NASA from awarding a contract to any offeror that indicates it “is not” a U.S. commercial provider.  The Commercial Space Act of 1998 (codified at 41 U.S.C. 14701 et seq.), the Iran, North Korea, and Syria Nonproliferation Act (P.L. 106-178, as amended by P.L. 107-228 and P.L. 109-353), and the U.S. Space Transportation Policy dated December 21, 2004 place limitations on foreign participation.  The Commercial Space Act of 1998 requires the prime contractor for ISS CRS be a United States commercial provider as defined in 41 U.S.C. 14701.  Paragraph 1.1 in section IV.A.1 of the draft RFP contains the statutory definition of a United States.  
Q-111:
Furthermore, Article 1.2 of this Section seems to require US space vehicles.  Does "space vehicles" mean in-space transportation vehicle?  If this is mandatory requirement, does it mean that NASA cannot accept foreign in-space transportation vehicle even if it is launched by US Commercial Provider of Space Transportation Services?

The U.S. Space Transportation Policy requires that "United States Government payloads shall be launched on space vehicles manufactured in the United States."  Interpretation of this provision is the responsibility of the White House Office of Science and Technology Policy (OSTP).  Historically, the domestic manufacturing requirement has been interpreted to apply to launch vehicles and not payloads.  NASA has not consulted with OSTP to evaluate a transfer vehicle under the policy.  NASA would seek to consult with OSTP about the application of the policy requirement to any specific proposal.
Q-112:
Would the Government consider awarding the Subject CLINs 00002 and 00003 as a separate contract for specific tasks?

No, NASA is not contemplating awarding an ISS CRS contract just to support CLINs 0002 and 0003.   
Q-113:
Will it be possible, for offerors whose capability development schedule will preclude consideration for initial orders, to be awarded just the basic contract, without any guarantee by the government for any minimum order?  This provision would allow such an offeror to compete for future orders when its capabilities are matured, without the need for the "on ramp" process.

No, all basic contracts will have the minimum guarantee regardless of timing of task order performance.
C-57:
The draft RPF requires that the Contractor represents and warrants that it maintains with responsible insurance carriers that, among other things, provides “insurance on plant and equipment against fire and other hazards to the extent similar properties are usually insured by others operating plants and properties of similar character in the same general locality.” Rather than a comparison with “similar properties” as “usually insured,” contractors should simply be required to provide evidence of adequate general commercial liability insurance. This is the model followed for the rest of the insurance required (that is, “adequate insurance against liability on account of damage to persons or property;” and “adequate insurance under all applicable workers' compensation laws.”)

The final RFP will not be changed.
C-58:
The draft RFP provides that that the “cross-waiver shall not be applicable when the Commercial Space Launch Act cross-waiver (49 U.S.C. 70101 et seq) is applicable.” The agency should edit this provision to provide that that the cross waiver shall not be applicable “to the extent that” (rather than simply “not be applicable when”) the Commercial Space Launch Act cross waiver is applicable.

The clause as issued in this amendment to the RFP states: “This cross-waiver shall not be applicable when 49 U.S.C. Subtitle IX, Chapter 701 is applicable.”
2) The Table of Contents is updated to reflect correct pagination.
3) Provision VI.A.1 is updated to reflect a change in the due date for receipt of questions and comments from May 12, 2008 to May 5, 2008.

Note: The due date for questions is hereby changed in the final RFP letter from May 12, 2008 to May 5, 2008.

4) A sentence in Section VII.A.4., under “Mission Suitability Definitions”, is revised:

From: All other things being equal, NASA will consider a contractor that provides the full range of vehicle services more favorably.
To: 
NASA will consider a contractor that provides the full range of vehicle    services more favorably.
5) Clause II.A.26, Reciprocal Waiver of Liability by NASA and the Contractor, is deleted in its entirety. 
6) Clause II.A.22, Cross-Waiver of Liability for Space Station Activities (NFS 1852.228-76) (Dec 1994) (Deviation) is changed to incorporate revised language.

7) Miscellaneous corrections include:

Location of Change


Change Description

VI.A.18(a)(1)



Changed “three” to “four” volumes

VI.A.18(a)(3)



Changed “I, II, and III” to “I, II, III, and IV”

VI.A.18(b)(1)a-e        


Clarifications and Attachment identifiers 

VI.A.20,3,T1,D 


            Added sub-heading “Resources” 

VI.A.20,3,T2



Deleted “The offeror shall provide existing 







Agreements if they are in place.”

VI.A.20,3,T4



Added “the ISS”

VI.A.20,3,M2



Added “payment” to first sentence

VII.B, Subfactor B Heading

Replace “Plan” with “Approach”

VII.B,M1




Added “approach” to first sentence

VII.B,M3
Added Safety and Health Plan identifier, “(Attachment V.E.), per Provision VI.A.8”

